Public Document Pack
Monitoring Officer
Christopher Potter
County Hall, Newport, Isle of Wight PO30 1UD
Telephone (01983) 821000

Name of meeting

FULL COUNCIL

Date

WEDNESDAY 15 SEPTEMBER 2021

Time

6.00 PM

Venue
Members of the
committee

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, NEWPORT,
ISLE OF WIGHT
All Members of the council
Democratic Services Officer: Marie Bartlett
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk

1.

Minutes (Pages 7 - 14)
To confirm as a true record the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2021.

2.

Declarations of Interest
To invite Members to declare any interest they might have in the matters on the
agenda.

3.

Public Question Time - Maximum 15 Minutes for Written Questions and 15
Minutes for Oral Questions
Questions may be asked without notice but to guarantee a full reply at the
meeting, a question must be put including the name and address of the
questioner by delivery in writing or by electronic mail to Democratic Services at
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk, no later than two clear working days before the
start of the meeting. Normally, Full Council is held on a Wednesday, therefore the
deadline for written questions will be Friday, 10 September 2021.
Details of this and other Council committee meetings can be viewed on the Isle of
Wight Council’s Committee website. This information may be available in
alternative formats on request. Please note the meeting will be audio recorded
and the recording will be placed on the website (except any part of the meeting
from which the press and public are excluded). Young people are welcome to
attend Council meetings however parents/carers should be aware that the public
gallery is not a supervised area.

Page 1

4.

Petition
A petition of over 2,500 Island residents has been received.
The petition asks:
That the Isle of Wight Council use the planning process when changing Ryde
Esplanade

The procedure for dealing with the petition is:
The petition sponsor, Ms C Foulkes, will have the opportunity to address the
Council. (3 minutes maximum) and then the leader will be given opportunity to
reply (3 minutes maximum).
Members will have 15 minutes to debate the matter.
Leader to sum up (maximum 2 minutes) and then the petition as stated above will
be voted upon.
5.

Chairman's Official Announcements
To receive the Chairman’s official announcements.

6.

Leaders Update Report (20 minutes) (Pages 15 - 18)
a) To receive the Leader’s update report (5 minutes maximum).
b) Members questions on the Leader’s update report (15 minutes maximum).

7.

8.

Report of the Monitoring Officer
(a)

Scheme of Co-option - Voting Rights Scheme (Pages 19 - 26)

(b)

Political Proportionality, Alternative arrangements, Allocation of seats,
Nominations, and Appointments to Committees (Pages 27 - 34)

Motions Submitted under PART 4A, Procedure Rule 9 of the Council's
Constitution
(a)

By Councillor Martin Oliver
Council notes that:
1) Her Majesty the Queen has agreed for a competition to be held to
grant the prestigious civic honour of ‘city status’ to a select number
of towns in the United Kingdom, to mark her Platinum Jubilee.
2) Local authorities can enter this competition, showcasing their civic
pride, interesting heritage and record of innovation, in order to make
the case for awarding a town one of these honours.
Page 2

3) It is widely recognised that the prestige associated with becoming a
city can support efforts to boost prosperity and attract visitors.
4) The Isle of Wight is one of a minority of English counties without a
city; whereas neighbouring Hampshire has three.
Council therefore agrees that:
1) The Council prepares a draft bid to nominate the Island’s County
Town for city status.
2) It will seek the support of Newport & Carisbrooke Community
Council as a partner in this bid, along with local businesses,
organisations and the public, particularly in Newport.
3) The proposed submission is tabled as an agenda item for the
Council meeting on 17th November 2021, for approval, ahead of
submission to the Cabinet Office by the deadline of 8th December
2021.
(b)

By Councillor Steve Hastings
On 18th November 2020, Council asked the then Cabinet to explore the
cost and feasibility of acquiring mobile average speed cameras for future
use on the Island. On 24th February 2021, Council approved a budget for
2021/22, which included an allocation of £300,000 for purchasing these
cameras.
Given that this capital allocation is for the current financial year, Council
urges the Cabinet to proceed with the purchase of these mobile average
speed cameras without delay, so that they can be deployed as soon as
possible for the benefit of communities around the Island.

(c)

By Councillor Joe Lever
The impacts of irreversible Climate Change are being felt across the UK
and around the world. Global temperatures have increased by over 1
degree Celsius from pre-industrial levels. Without significant and sustained
action, the world is set to exceed the Paris Agreement’s 1.5°C limit by
2040. Therefore, the current UK target of net zero carbon by 2050 is too
little too late.
According to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, limiting
heating to 1.5°C may still be possible with significant and immediate action
from national and local authorities such as the Isle of Wight, as well as
wider society. Investing now would not only help avoid a cataclysmic
climate and ecological tipping point but can also bring many benefits in the
form of good jobs, breathable towns and thriving communities.
Council notes that:
1. Many local authorities are playing an important role in the UK taking
action to achieve net zero carbon
2. The Climate and Ecological Emergency (CEE) Bill currently before
Parliament states that
Pagethe
3 UK Government must develop an

emergency strategy that:
a. requires that the UK plays its fair and proper role in reducing
greenhouse gas emissions consistent with at least a 66%
chance of limiting heating to 1.5oC above pre-industrial
temperatures;
b. ensures that all the UK’s consumption emissions are
accounted for, including international aviation and passenger
shipping;
c. ensures that steps to mitigate emissions do not damage
ecosystems, food and water availability and human health;
d. ensures that steps taken to increase the health, abundance,
diversity and resilience of species, populations and
ecosystems follow the mitigation and conservation hierarchy avoid, minimise, restore and offset;
e. restores, expands and enhances the management of natural
and cultivated ecosystems to protect and enhance
biodiversity, ecological and ecosystem service provision;
f. ensures an end to the exploration, extraction, export and
import of fossil fuels by the United Kingdom as rapidly as
possible; and
g. sets up an independent citizens’ assembly to engage with the
UK Government to help develop the emergency strategy.
Isle of Wight Council therefore resolves to:
1. Support the Climate and Ecological Emergency (CEE) Bill;
2. Inform the local media of this decision;
3. Write to local Member of Parliament, asking them to support the
CEE Bill; and
4. Write to the CEE Bill Alliance, the organisers of the campaign for the
Bill, expressing its support (campaign@ceebill.uk).
9.

Member Question Time of the Leader and Cabinet Member (30 minutes)
To receive a reply to a question asked during Members’ Question Time, a
question must be submitted in writing or by electronic mail to Democratic
Services no later than 5pm on Thursday, 9 September 2021. A question may be
asked at the meeting without prior notice but in these circumstances there is no
guarantee that a full reply will be given at the meeting.

CHRISTOPHER POTTER
Monitoring Officer
Tuesday, 7 September 2021

Page 4

Interests
If there is a matter on this agenda which may relate to an interest you or your partner or
spouse has or one you have disclosed in your register of interests, you must declare your
interest before the matter is discussed or when your interest becomes apparent. If the
matter relates to an interest in your register of pecuniary interests then you must take no
part in its consideration and you must leave the room for that item. Should you wish to
participate as a member of the public to express your views where public speaking is
allowed under the Council’s normal procedures, then you will need to seek a dispensation
to do so. Dispensations are considered by the Monitoring Officer following the submission
of a written request. Dispensations may take up to 2 weeks to be granted.
Members are reminded that it is a requirement of the Code of Conduct that they should
also keep their written Register of Interests up to date. Any changes to the interests
recorded on that form should be made as soon as reasonably practicable, and within 28
days of the change. A change would be necessary if, for example, your employment
changes, you move house or acquire any new property or land.
If you require more guidance on the Code of Conduct or are unsure whether you need to
record an interest on the written register you should take advice from the Monitoring
Officer – Christopher Potter on (01983) 821000, email christopher.potter@iow.gov.uk, or
Deputy
Monitoring
Officer
Justin Thorne
on
(01983)
821000,
email justin.thorne@iow.gov.uk.
Notice of recording
Please note that all meetings that are open to the public and press may be filmed or
recorded and/or commented on online by the council or any member of the public or press.
However, this activity must not disrupt the meeting, and if it does you will be asked to stop
and possibly to leave the meeting. This meeting may also be filmed for live and
subsequent broadcast (except any part of the meeting from which the press and public are
excluded).
If you wish to record, film or photograph the council meeting or if you believe that being
filmed or recorded would pose a risk to the safety of you or others then please speak with
the democratic services officer prior to that start of the meeting. Their contact details are
on the agenda papers.
If the press and public are excluded for part of a meeting because confidential or exempt
information is likely to be disclosed, there is no right to record that part of the meeting. All
recording and filming equipment must be removed from the meeting room when the public
and press are excluded.
If you require further information please see the council guide to reporting on council
meetings which can be found at
http://www.iwight.com/documentlibrary/view/recording-of-proceedings-guidance-note
All information that is recorded by the council is held in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 2018. For further information please contact Democratic Services at
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk
Page 5

Arrangements for Submitting Oral Questions at Meetings of Council and Cabinet:
The front desk “opens” for public wishing to attend the meeting half an hour before the
meeting.
In the circumstances that a member of the public wishes to ask an oral question, they
should approach the front desk and notify them of their intention. They will be given a form
to complete which details their name, town/village of residence, email address and the
topic of the question (not the question in full, unless they wish to provide this).
These forms will be numbered in the order they are handed back.
The time for registering questions will be for a 20 minute period (up to 10 minutes prior to
the start of the meeting). After that time expires the forms will be collected and given to the
Chairman of the meeting.
If time allows after dealing with any written questions, the Chairman will then ask those
who have submitted a form to put their question. These will be in the order they were
received. As the subject matter is known, the Chairman should be able to indicate which
member will reply. If time permits the Chairman may accept further questions.
The option to ask a supplementary question will be at the Chairman’s discretion.
Once the defined period of time allowed for questions has passed (and assuming the
Chairman has not extended this) then all remaining oral questions are left unanswered.
No oral question will receive a guaranteed written response, unless the member
responding indicates as such.

Page 6

Agenda Item 1

Name of meeting
Date and Time

WEDNESDAY 21 JULY 2021 COMMENCING AT 5.00 PM

Venue

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, NEWPORT, ISLE
OF WIGHT

Present

Cllr G Brodie (Chairman), Cllr C Chritchison (Vice
Chariman), Cllrs D Adams, D Andre, J Bacon, P Brading,
G Brodie, V Churchman, C Critchison, R Downer, W Drew,
S Ellis, P Fuller, A Garratt, S Hastings, S Hendry,
C Jarman, J Jones-Evans, P Jordan, J Lever, M Lilley,
K Love, K Lucioni, J Medland, C Mosdell, J Nicholson,
M Oliver, T Outlaw, L Peacey-Wilcox, D Pitcher, R Quigley,
C Quirk, R Redrup, J Robertson, P Spink, I Stephens and
I Ward

Apologies
15.

FULL COUNCIL

Cllrs M Beston, I Dore, G Peace and M Price

Minutes
RESOLVED:
THAT the minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2021 be approved.

16.

Declarations of Interest
Councillor Julie Jones-Evans declared an interest in Minute number 22.3, as she
was the Vice Chairman of Newport and Carisbrooke Community Council and the
Ward councillor for Newport Central.
Councillor Karen Lucioni declared an interest in Minute number 22.1, as she worked
for the Earth PA noticeboard for Adult Social Care.
Councillor Michael Lilley declared an interest in Minute Number 19, in relation to
Covid, as he was the Chairman of the Isle of Wight Voluntary Sector Forum.

17.

Public Question Time
A written question was submitted by Mr Locke of Freshwater regarding the
vaccination centre in Freshwater (PQ 36/21).

1
Page 7

Alison Logan from Niton asked a verbal question regarding the council’s investment
and reintroduction of County Farms and their support of the net zero carbon
aspirations. The Leader advised that a written response would be supplied.
18.

Chairman's Official Announcements
A written report had been circulated for information. The Chairman advised it was
Newport’s ornithologist, botanist, and historian Bill Shepard’s 100th birthday. The
Chairman confirmed he would send a birthday card on behalf of the Council.

19.

Leaders Update Report
The Leader advised that it had only been eight weeks since the Alliance group took
over the administration of the Council and there had been a number of changes
made based on commitments of democracy, openness, transparency and
accountability. Cabinet Members had taken on portfolios and indicated the
importance of taking their time to understand the details of services the council
provided. It was acknowledged that Covid-19 had taken a toll on council resources
and would impact for a time to come, however with government easing restrictions
the importance of encouraging the use of good behaviours was important.
Thanks, were given to Cllr Clare Mosdell who had sought money for a new
homeless scheme which the leader had attended the opening of. She went on to
thank the residents of Pan and Barton along with local Cllr Geoff Brodie to achieve
agreement for the scheme.
Questions were raised regarding community wealth building on Island and using an
organisation to provide a presentation to Councillors on what is possible and the
best way forward, the Leader asked Cllr Quigley to lead on this.
The Leader was asked to write a letter of commendation to both Freshwater and
Totland Parish Councils, especially Daniel James for outstanding effort in putting
safe swimming buoys in the areas bays. It was also noted that listening to people in
Ryde regarding the Ryde Interchange was important.
The Leader agreed the IW Voluntary sector had played an important role in
supporting the most vulnerable residents during the pandemic and would have an
important role in the Islands recovery. Volunteers were commended for all their help
during this time.
It was recognised by the Leader that consultation with Town and Parish Council’s
was important especially regarding the proposed Island Plan, it was hoped that
discussions could take place on a regular basis, to discuss local matters.
The Leader was asked what assessment had been made of the councils resilience
to restore to business as usual and cope with the pressure such as employment and
housing, the Leader believed that the health and wellbeing of Island residents was
important and it had to be done right to help everyone.

2
Page 8

Concern was raised regarding the recent Southern Water legal action and the
implications that may have for the Island, the Cabinet Member explained that the
legal action had been monitored closely, data that had been supplied could be
incorrect and a meeting had been arranged with Southern Water supported by the
MP to request correct data. It was noted that in the Bay area Southern Water had
spent £6 million to alleviate discharge of pollution, however there were still a number
instances when this still happened, it was agreed that this would be raised at the
meeting with Southern Water.
RESOLVED:
THAT the Leaders Update report be noted.
20.

Report of the Leader
20.1

Proposals for reintroducing democracy into the council's constitution

The Leader presented the report highlighting the proposed changes to the council’s
constitution and reasons for them, advising the changes would demonstrate
transparency and openness to Island residents. A number of changes had already
been made such as reverse proportionality at Scrutiny Committees and no Cabinet
Member delegated decisions.
There was some discussion regarding the need to refer to Council officers as staff,
as it could be seen to be disrespectful, and it was noted there had been no
consultation with staff, with most staff being unaware of the change. It was
suggested the change to councillors was more understandable in regard to what the
proposal was trying to achieve. A proposal to vote en bloc except for option 1 was
duly seconded.
It was noted that Full council meetings were held at 6pm prior to the last
administration who moved it to a 5pm start to save money on staff time, heating and
lighting.
The involvement of the Youth Council and an IWALC representative on planning
and (with voting rights) on Corporate Scrutiny were seen to be positive steps and
were welcomed. A proposal was made and duly seconded to vote on proposals
three and four separately.
A vote was taken for a separate vote on proposal one, the proposal fell.
A vote was taken for a separate vote on proposals three and four, the proposal fell.
A vote was taken for all proposals en bloc the result of which was as follows:
RESOLVED:
THAT the proposals as specified be approved.

3
Page 9

20.2

Report on use of special urgency provisions

The Leader presented the report and proposed that it be noted, which was duly
seconded, a vote was taken the result of which was:
RESOLVED:
THAT the report be noted.
21.

Report of the Monitoring Officer
21.1

Nominations, appointments to Committees and other
nominations/appointments

The Chairman formally moved the report, outlining that some of the seats on
Committees had not been filled at the last meeting, and this was also an opportunity
to nominate substitutes.
A list of Vice Chairman nominations had been made by the Alliance group (appendix
1 - attached to and forming part of these minutes), a nomination for Councillor
Vanessa Churchman for Vice Chairman of Isle of Wight Pension Fund was made
and duly seconded. A further nomination was put forward for Councillor Claire
Critchison for the same position. A vote was taken the result of which was as
follows:
RESOLVED:
Cllr Claire Critchison was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Isle of Wight Pension
Fund.
There were a few additional changes to the outside bodies (appendix 2), with a
nomination for Armed Forces Champion and Mental Health Champion. The
Chairman asked for nominations for the Deputy Police and Crime panel member,
Councillor Ian Ward was the only councillor to indicate an interest in nomination and
duly took post.
A vote was taken on the nominations and the result was as follows:
RESOLVED:
i.

THAT the appointments made as contained in the updated Appendix 1 to the
report be approved.
ii. THAT the council nominations/appointments in the updated Appendix 2 to the
report be approved.
iii. THAT the executive nominations/appointments in the updated Appendix 3 to
the report be noted.

4
Page 10

22.

Motions Submitted under Part 4A, Procedure Rule 9 of the Council's
Constitution
22.1

By Councillor Karl Love

Councillor Love moved the following motion which was duly seconded:
Our Council calls on the Government to make good the promise of the Prime
Minister, made on the 24 July 2019 who stated to “fix the crisis in social care once
and for all with clear plans we are preparing to give every older person the dignity
and security they deserve”.
Specifically, our Council calls on the Government to publish its plan for the future
reform and funding of adult social care as a matter of national priority and urgency.
For too long, adult social care funding has been bowing in the wind without any
clear political steer and without any national plans for it’s future or adequate funding
strategy. This has resulted in increasing levels of unmet needs across our island
communities and councils across the UK are having to make the most invidious of
savings decisions in order to meet its legal duty to deliver a balanced budget.
The pandemic has underlined the fact that adult social care is at the very forefront of
supporting our most vulnerable people to help them stay safe. If the Government
does not publish its plan, and clarify the future funding of adult social care, it is
betraying our vulnerable citizens as well as the people working in social care. We
have asked so very much over the past 15 months from our carers other Key
workers and volunteers. We must receive proper guidance and funding as was
described by our prime minister. Without reform and additional funding we will have
to face additional cuts to services which are already stretched to their limits.
Therefore, this council writes to the Prime Minister to ask that he looks into the
issues with funding within Adult Social Care.
During the debate an amendment to the motion was moved to include all party
leaders to be written to, Councillor Love agreed to accept the amendment.
Following the debate a vote was taken and it was:
RESOLVED:
THAT Council calls on the Government to make good the promise of the Prime
Minister, made on the 24 July 2019 who stated to “fix the crisis in social care once
and for all with clear plans we are preparing to give every older person the dignity
and security they deserve”.
Specifically, our Council calls on the Government to publish its plan for the future
reform and funding of adult social care as a matter of national priority and urgency.
For too long, adult social care funding has been bowing in the wind without any
clear political steer and without any national plans for it’s future or adequate funding
strategy. This has resulted in increasing levels of unmet needs across our island

5
Page 11

communities and councils across the UK are having to make the most invidious of
savings decisions in order to meet its legal duty to deliver a balanced budget.
The pandemic has underlined the fact that adult social care is at the very forefront of
supporting our most vulnerable people to help them stay safe. If the Government
does not publish its plan, and clarify the future funding of adult social care, it is
betraying our vulnerable citizens as well as the people working in social care. We
have asked so very much over the past 15 months from our carers other Key
workers and volunteers. We must receive proper guidance and funding as was
described by our prime minister. Without reform and additional funding we will have
to face additional cuts to services which are already stretched to their limits.
Therefore, this council writes to the Prime Minister and party leaders to ask that they
look the issues with funding within Adult Social Care.
22.2

By Councillor Gary Peace

Councillor Peace had sent his apologies for the meeting, therefore the motion was
not heard.
22.3

By Councillor Martin Oliver

Councillor Oliver moved the following motion which was duly seconded:
Council notes that:
1)

Her Majesty the Queen has agreed for a competition to be held to grant
the prestigious civic honour of ‘city status’ to a select number of towns in
the United Kingdom, to mark her Platinum Jubilee.

2)

Local authorities can enter this competition, showcasing their civic pride,
interesting heritage and record of innovation, in order to make the case for
awarding a town one of these honours.

3)

It is widely recognised that the prestige associated with becoming a city
can support efforts to boost prosperity and attract visitors.

4)

The Isle of Wight is one of a minority of English counties without a city;
whereas neighbouring Hampshire has three.

Council therefore agrees that:
1)

The Council prepares a draft bid to nominate the Island’s County Town for
city status.

2)

It will seek the support of Newport & Carisbrooke Community Council as a
partner in this bid, along with local businesses, organisations and the public,
particularly in Newport.

6
Page 12

3)

The proposed submission is tabled as an agenda item for the Council
meeting on 17th November 2021, for approval, ahead of submission to
the Cabinet Office by the deadline of 8th December 2021.

The Chairman advised under Part 4A Procedure Rule 10 of the Council’s
Constitution, he had determined that as the subject matter of the motion materially
increased expenditure it would stand adjourned without discussion to the next Full
Council, so that the Cabinet can first give it consideration.
RESOLVED:
THAT the motion be referred to Cabinet for prior consideration.
22.4

By Councillor Suzie Ellis

Councillor Ellis withdrew the motion.
23.

Member Question Time of the Leader
There were no written questions submitted by the deadline.
Councillor Churchman requested an update in regard to the floating bridge. The
Leader advised that due to the ongoing legal situation she could not answer the
question however, she hoped an update would be put to the Cabinet in the Autumn.

CHAIRMAN

7
Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Committee:

FULL COUNCIL

Date:

15 SEPTEMBER 2021

Title:

LEADER’S UPDATE

Report of:

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

1.

Cabinet colleagues are continuing to get on top of their portfolios and are working
hard with staff to identify how we can reshape some of the council’s activities to meet
the aspirations of the Alliance Administrations. As set out in the forward plan I expect
this work to be summarised and published for discussion in a revised corporate plan
in October.

2.

I and my Cabinet remain committed to making decisions openly and explaining
honestly to the public the immense challenges the council is facing. Councillors will
note from the recent published forward plan that we have identified a significant
amount of work to do.

3.

We are still working under the covid-19 pandemic which brings an added dimension
to how we must think about, and plan for, everything we want to do. The visitor
economy is central to the Island’s overall economic wellbeing so it is important that
we have been able to welcome as many visitors as possible. I hope has provided
enough trade to help our businesses recover and plan for the future.

4.

As I write Almost 81 percent of Island residents over 18 years of age have now
received both doses of vaccine (86% a single dose) but we still need to encourage
those in the younger age groups (18 – 34 years) to have the vaccination; in the main
this is the group of people most likely to be infected by the virus at this time. I hope
that we will soon have some greater clarity from government about the booster
vaccine and vaccines for those over 12 years of age.

5.

It is clear that we are going to have to live with the threat of covid-19 for some time
to come and in doing so everybody will need to think carefully about the personal
activities they will undertake to keep themselves and those closest to them safe. The
guidance is all there; vaccinations, testing, face coverings, social distancing,
ventilation, good hand hygiene; the choice for us all is how we use it.

6.

The Public Health team continues to lead the overall response to the covid-19
pandemic, monitoring the case numbers, checking for and managing outbreaks,
providing information advice and guidance through, for example, a number of
webinars for education settings in preparation for the start of term. It continues to
Page 15

input to the shaping of the vaccination programme to encourage those least likely to
take up the vaccine to do so.
7.

Our 0-19 children’s public health service is now bedding in after a year of the new
service model and partnership with NHS Solent. We are improving the outcomes for
children and families and supporting those impacted by covid measures. It is likely
this service will be central to the roll out of covid-19 vaccinations to those of 12 years
of age and older should the government choose to take this approach.

8.

Much has been written in recent weeks about the national pressures on the health
and social care system, but especially in adult social care. I recognise these
challenges on the Isle of Wight and hope that the government may soon address
them, although the response to my letter following the motion at the last meeting of
the Full Council was less then helpful.

9.

I am extremely grateful to everyone who has contributed to resolving some of the
challenges faced by the Island at the end of August. This was only possible because
of the good and strong partnerships between the council, local providers and health
services which meant the Island was able to stay ‘just ahead’ of the pressures and
keep people safe, but the situation remains exceptionally challenging.

10. Councillor Love continues to maintain a close involvement in monitoring the
pressures experienced in the system and the council’s response to them. Our care
and support services, both internal and commissioned from the independent sector,
continue to be stretched as a result of the same workforce pressures which are being
seen nationally and an increased demand for support as we ‘come out of’ the
pandemic. We have seen an increase in contacts across all service areas within
adult social care and housing needs and as demand continues I am grateful to all our
staff who continue to work around the clock to ensure that people are safe and receive
the care and support that they need.
11. Our children and young people are now back at school and teachers and support
staff are working hard to ensure that they will hopefully enjoy a less disrupted year in
education. However, we remain watchful and our staff continue to advise and support
schools whenever there is an issue. That support and advice happens around the
clock and is not always visible but is vital in ensuring the smooth running our
education system on the Isle of Wight.
12. Since the last Full Council meeting our Children’s Services social work teams
received a focused visit from Ofsted looking at child protection arrangements. This
was a routine but intensive check from Ofsted which does not result in a graded
judgement but comments on a specific area of our work. I am pleased to say that
Ofsted noted continued good progress from our previous inspection in late 2018 when
our services were judged to be ‘good’ in all regards. This is an area of the council’s
activity that requires constant attention and I am grateful for the diligence of Councillor
Andre in this regard. There is and always will be more to do but it is good to have
external validation that we are continuing to do well in this vital area.
13. The council in partnership with Amey has recently run a very successful food waste
road show and online campaign highlighting the importance of composting your food
waste thought he weekly food waste collections. The events have been so popular
Page 16

that additional days in Cowes, Yarmouth, Ventnor and Ryde have been added to the
schedule. Our waste and recycling services are continuing to exceed their targets
for recycling thanks to the excellent work of our community making sure the right
things go in the right bins.
14. In the coming month many council facilities will be upgraded with low carbon heating
systems and solar panels to help bring our estate closer to net-carbon zero and in
support supporting our Mission Zero - Climate and Environment Strategy that will be
coming to the Cabinet in October. This work is being funded by a £2.6m grant
achieved by a collaboration of our climate change and property services teams who
are now working hard to deliver these exciting projects.
15. As part of our sustainable transport aspirations works are shortly to begin to create a
new, all-weather, shared-used path of approximately 1.2 kilometres long upgrading
what is currently a largely gravel track between The Riverside Centre on Newport
Harbour and Mews Lane on the Newport to Cowes cycleway. The project is funded
through the government’s Active Travel 2 and Local Transport Plan programmes and
is supported by 84 percent of over 600 responses to a consultation exercise.
16. A further grant from the Department for Transport has been secured to increase local
cycling and walking infrastructure plans in other locations across the Island in order
to secure external funds and discussions with Town and Parish Councils will be
starting shortly.
17. It was a relief to see the roadworks to widen St George’s Way in Newport completed
during August. I understand that, along with the works at the former St Mary’s
roundabout, these works should make an impact on the flow of traffic around the
County Town. I am very much looking forward to seeing the impact of these works
and know that Councillor Jordan will be monitoring their impact very closely.
18. The Alliance Administration is keen to address the lack of provision of affordable
housing for Island residents, especially in making use of brownfield sites. Therefore,
I am pleased that we have been able to make a bid for almost £1m to the
government’s brownfield land release fund. This will help in cleaning up and clearing
council owned brownfield sites readying them for housing development. I am looking
forward to a positive outcome of his bid very shortly.
19. I requested a visit to the Branstone Farm development site recently. Here forty two
new affordable homes are coming out of the ground, new business units are being
built alongside a new home for Goddards brewery. This project brings to life the
Biosphere principles informing the Island regeneration programme with the work-live
development being set in rewilded, biodiverse landscape. I hope that this model can
be replaced in other schemes across the Island and I know Councillor Bacon will
continue to champion the Biosphere Reserve as a catalyst for positive sustainable
change.
20. It’s been great to see our town centres and tourist areas recovering during the
summer with many businesses reporting record turnover in recent weeks. The
council’s support for High Street recovery encouraging diverse uses such as arts and
culture and themed markets through Heritage Action Zone funding has helped
provide a glimpse of what the future role of our town centres might be as well as being
Page 17

continued hubs for retail and commerce.
21. Councillor Julie Jones-Evans recommends the council’s continued support for the
tourism Business Improvement District (BID) as a vital means of securing the much
needed funds to promote the Island to potential visitors. The Visit Isle of Wight BID
ballot renewal process is underway for a further five year term for this valuable
tourism promotion initiative. A successful BID will helping the Island compete for the
“staycation pound” and I would encourage all those businesses who have a vote to
use it.
22. The efforts of Councillor Ian Stephens has got our website redevelopment project
back on track following its challenges during the pandemic. A new content
management system will be ready to load with new content by the end of November
2021 which will allow for user review and content refinement in anticipation of a go
live of a new website at the end of March 2022. Having a much better and easier to
navigate website is important we must work harder to make it easier for the public to
communicate with us so that the council can respond better to its wants and needs
than ever before.

COUNCILLOR LORA PEACEY-WILCOX
Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Strategic Partnerships

Contact Point: Councillor Lora Peacey-Wilcox | Leader of the Council
821000 | e-mail lora.peacey-wilcox@iow.gov.uk

Page 18

Agenda Item 7a
Purpose: For Decision

Name of meeting

FULL COUNCIL

Date

15 SEPTEMBER 2021

Title

SCHEME OF CO-OPTION – VOTING RIGHTS SCHEME

Report of

MONITORING OFFICER

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to give effect to the decision of the Full Council made on
21 July 2021 to restore the voting rights of the co-opted IWALC (Isle of Wight
Association of Local Councils) member on the Corporate Scrutiny Committee.

2.

This requires the Full Council to have in place an agreed scheme of co-option
(referred to as a ‘voting rights scheme’), and so Full Council is being requested to
approve such a scheme.

BACKGROUND

3.

Overview and scrutiny committees may include a person who is not a member of the
local authority. In other words, a person may be co-opted on to an overview and
scrutiny committee.

4.

Full Council decided at its most recent meeting that a member of IWALC should be
a voting member of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee.

5.

A co-opted person normally has no voting rights (subject to statutory exceptions).

6.

Voting is, therefore, statutorily dependant upon being given permission to exercise
the right to vote.

7.

Permission to vote can be granted under the terms of a statutory scheme of co-option
i.e. a voting rights scheme being approved and having been duly published.

Page 19

8.

Councillors are therefore recommended to grant voting rights within the limitations of
the voting rights scheme and to approve the scheme in the Appendix, and to grant
delegated authority to undertake the publishing requirements.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT
9.

Good governance arrangements are essential to the delivery of the council’s services
and the decision-making process that support this.

CONSULTATION
10.

Consultation with Cllr Lora Peacey-Wilcox, Cllr Steve Hastings, and all ungrouped
members

FINANCIAL / BUDGET IMPLICATIONS
11.

There are no additional costs associated with the proposals contained in this report.
The recommendations accord with the resources available within the overall budget
agreed by Full Council in February 2021.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
12.

An overview and scrutiny committee (or any sub-committee of such a committee)
may include persons who are not members of the local authority (see section 9FA (4)
of the Local Government Act 2000).

13.

The Full Council has the power to appoint to an overview and scrutiny committee,
and an overview and scrutiny committee has the power to appoint to one of its subcommittees (see section 9FA (7) of the Local Government Act 2000).

14.

No co-opted person is entitled to vote unless permitted to do so under the terms of a
voting rights scheme (see section 9FA (5) of the Local Government Act 2000).

15.

There are limitations to what voting rights can be granted under paragraph 11 of
Schedule A1 to the Local Government Act 2000. Such a voting rights scheme does
not apply to any overview and scrutiny committee when it is acting in its capacity as
the Council’s crime and disorder committee under section 19 (1) of the Police and
Justice Act 2006. The Corporate Scrutiny Committee acts, inter alia, as the statutory
crime and disorder committee.

16.

Under regulation 3 (1) and (2) respectively of the Crime and Disorder (Overview and
Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 (as amended) made under section 20 (5) of the 2006 Act,
a person to be co-opted to serve on a crime and disorder committee undertaking
crime and disorder functions is co-opted by the crime and disorder committee, and
such a co-opted person is not entitled to vote on any particular matter unless the
crime and disorder committee so determines. Eligibility to co-opt and to vote in this
crime and disorder committee function context is, therefore, to be determined under
these regulations by the crime and disorder committee i.e. by the Corporate Scrutiny
Committee, and not by the Full Council.
Page 20

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
17.

The council as a public body is required to meet its statutory obligations under the
Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to eliminate unlawful discrimination, promote
equal opportunities between people from different groups and to foster good relations
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share
it. The protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage
and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation. It is not considered that the content of this report has any negative impact
on any of the protected characteristics.

OPTIONS
18.

To approve the scheme of co-option (voting rights scheme), and to grant delegated
authority to the Monitoring Officer to publish the statutory notice in one or more
newspapers circulating in the area.

19.

To disapprove the scheme of co-option (voting rights scheme).

RISK MANAGEMENT
20.

The recommendations are to implement the decision of the Full Council made on 21
July 2021.

EVALUATION
21.

If the decision made by the Full Council on 21 July 2021 is to be implemented, then
a voting rights scheme needs to be approved and published.

RECOMMENDATIONS
22.

That the scheme of co-option (voting rights scheme) set out in the Appendix be
approved.

23.

That the Monitoring Officer be granted delegated authority to publish the statutory
notice in one or more newspapers circulating in the area.

APPENDICES ATTACHED
24.

Appendix: Scheme of Co-option (Voting Rights Scheme).

Contact Point: Christopher Potter, Monitoring Officer,  821000 e-mail
christopher.potter@iow.gov.uk
CLAIRE SHAND
Director of Corporate Services

CLLR LORA PEACEY-WILCOX
Leader of the Cabinet/Council

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
ISLE OF WIGHT COUNCIL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
SCHEME OF CO-OPTION – VOTING RIGHTS SCHEME
1. Background
This scheme is made by the Isle of Wight Council under paragraph 11 of
Schedule A1 to the Local Government Act 2000 and under all other enabling
powers to provide for the co-option of persons to its overview and scrutiny
committees.
Copies of this scheme are available for public inspection at the offices at County
Hall, High Street, Newport, PO30 1UD and on the Council’s website at
www.iow.gov.uk
2. Purpose
An overview and scrutiny committee may include persons who are not
members of the local authority (see section 9FA (4) of the Local Government
Act 2000), and the Council recognises the valuable input and different
perspectives a person who is not a member of the local authority may bring into
the Council’s decision-making process.
The Council considers, therefore, that the co-option of a person (called a coopted member) to any of its overview and scrutiny committees will, by enabling
a person interested in serving the community to become involved in local
democracy, contribute to the promotion of good and better administration.
A co-optee’s role is to complement, rather than replace, the role of elected
councillors who remain democratically accountable to the electorate.
If a co-opted person is to be permitted to vote (see section 9FA (5) of the Local
Government Act 2000), there is a requirement to have a ‘scheme of co-option’
referred to as a ‘voting rights scheme’ (in the absence of other statutory
authority).
3. Overview and Scrutiny Committees
The Council currently has appointed 4 overview and scrutiny committees –
 Corporate Scrutiny Committee
 Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Children’s Services, Education and
Skills
 Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Health and Social Care
 Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Neighbourhoods and Regeneration
1

Page 23

The number and terms of reference of any overview and scrutiny committee
may vary from time to time and are set out in the Council’s Constitution. Their
principal purpose is to look at policy and to review and scrutinise decisions of
the Cabinet, the Council, and its partners and to make reports and
recommendations on matters affecting the Isle of Wight and its inhabitants.
4. Co-option Process
Appointment of a person as a co-opted member on an overview and scrutiny
committee will be made by the Full Council.
To be eligible for co-option, a person must meet the qualification for election as
a member of a local authority in terms of age, residency or employment, and
nationality.
5. Term of Office
A person will be co-opted for a period of up to four years until the next ordinary
elections, but their period of co-option may come to an end earlier for any of the
following reasons –
 by resignation in writing to the Head of Paid Service,
 failure to attend a meeting of the overview and scrutiny committee to
which they have been appointed for a period of six consecutive months,
 any reasons that would disqualify a person from continuing to hold office
as a councillor, or
 by resolution of the Full Council.
6. Members’ Code of Conduct
Under the Localism Act 2011 a person who is a voting co-opted member must
comply, when they act in their role as a member, with the Members’ Code of
Conduct as it applies from time to time. Any allegation of a breach of the
Members’ Code of Conduct will be dealt with in accordance with the
arrangements agreed by the Full Council from time to time.
7. Membership and Voting
A co-opted person will be a member of the overview and committee to which
they have been appointed. There is no right to substitute where that co-opted
member cannot attend unless the Full Council has appointed another person
as a co-opted person to act in that person’s place when absent for the entire
meeting.
Subject to any disqualifying interest(s), the co-opted person is entitled to attend
and speak at any meeting of the overview and scrutiny committee to which they
have been appointed (including those meetings where the public have been
2

Page 24

excluded from the meeting) in accordance with the relevant procedural rules
set out in the Constitution from time to time.
Permission is given by Full Council in accordance with this scheme whereby
the co-opted person may vote at meetings of the overview and scrutiny
committee of the Council (or sub-committee of the overview and scrutiny
committee) to which they have been appointed provided that:
 such a co-opted person does not have any disqualifying interest(s) from
voting; and
 the matter is not a crime and disorder function of any crime and disorder
committee as separate permission to vote needs to be sought direct
from the crime and disorder committee, and eligibility to vote is
determined under the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny)
Regulations 2009 (as amended).
Under this scheme, no more than one co-opted member shall sit on, and vote
at any meeting of, an overview and scrutiny committee (or sub-committee of
such an overview and scrutiny committee). This maximum limit shall be given
effect as if this limit is included in the Constitution. (NB. This does not apply to
any statutory arrangements to the contrary, for example, qualifying persons
included on the Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Children’s Services,
Education and who can, by law, vote on educational matters within the remit of
that committee and which fall to be decided at that meeting – see paragraphs
6 to 8 of Schedule 1A to the Local Government Act 2000).
8. Training
The Council shall ensure that suitable training is made available from time to
time to any co-opted member, and it will be for the Council to determine what
is deemed suitable to enable that co-opted member to properly discharge their
duties.
9. Members’ Allowance Scheme
The Members’ Allowance Scheme that applies from time to time will set out if
any allowance or other payments are to be payable to any co-opted person.
10. Variation / Revocation
Any previous scheme of co-option made is hereby revoked.
This scheme may be varied from time to time or revoked by the Council.

15 September 2021

3

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7b
Purpose: For Decision

Name of meeting

COUNCIL

Date

15 SEPTEMBER 2021

Title

POLITICAL PROPORTIONALITY, ALTERNATIVE
ARRANGEMENTS, ALLOCATION OF SEATS, NOMINATIONS,
AND APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES

Report of

MONITORING OFFICER

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to formally undertake a statutory review of the political
proportionality arrangements (as triggered under section 15 of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989) in respect of bodies that are required to be politically
proportionate.

2.

The review has become necessary due to the resignation last month of Cllr Geoff
Brodie from the Alliance Group, resulting in a change in group membership figures
and so in the proportionality overall. Two vacancies arise for the Alliance Group for
nominations to be made, and there is a net reduction in two seats available to the
Alliance Group, with two seats becoming allocated to the ungrouped.

3.

The report is also to give formal notice that alternative arrangements are to be
considered. Political proportionality (where applicable) may be disapplied in whole or
in part if such arrangements proposed by members at the meeting are agreed
(provided there is no dissenting vote). This inclusion of consideration of alternative
arrangements on the agenda gives councillors an option should they wish to pursue
it. Without it being included, councillors would not have this option at this time.

4.

Where political proportionality applies and has not been disapplied (under section 17
of that Act), nominations will be needed to the vacancies in the seats which are
(re)allocated in accordance with those rules following this political proportionality
review, and if any other changes in the wishes of political groups are to be given
effect.

5.

Full council must appoint in accordance with the wishes duly expressed by those
established political group(s). Seats must also be allocated in proportion to the
ungrouped overall. Full council must appoint so as to reflect the proportion of seats
allocated to the ungrouped.
Page 27

6.

The report also deals with other appointments which still stand to be made, being the
IWALC representative on the Planning Committee and the IWALC representative on
the Health and Wellbeing Board. All other appointments are unaffected.

BACKGROUND
7.

At the Annual Council meeting held on 26 May 2021 a review of the political
proportionality was undertaken in respect of those bodies which are required to be
politically proportionate. A further review is required for the reason stated above.

8.

The table below lists the numbers of councillors belonging to established political
groups and those who are ungrouped:

Alliance
Conservatives
Ungrouped
Total:
9.

May 2021
18
18
3
39

September 2021
17
18
4
39

As a result of this resignation and further review, the seat allocation is that:
(i)
the Alliance Group has two vacancies to nominate councillors for appointment
by the council namely:

Committee

Vacancy

Nomination Received

Appointments and
Employment Committee

1 Alliance Group

TBA

Corporate Scrutiny

1 Alliance Group

Cllr Karen Lucioni

(ii)

the ungrouped has two additional seats to fill and to be appointed to by the
council, namely:

Committee

Vacancy

Nomination Received

Appeals Committee

1 Ungrouped

Cllr Geoff Brodie

Planning Committee

1 Ungrouped

Cllr Geoff Brodie

10.

Appendix 1 sets out the old and new proportionate seat allocations.

11.

Should however the council wish to make alternative arrangements, the council may
disapply the political balance requirements in whole or in part provided no councillor
votes against those alternative arrangements (see section 17(1) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 and regulation 20 of the Local Government
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990).

Page 28

12.

At the most recent meeting held on 21 July 2021, the council agreed that there should
be one non-voting member of the Planning Committee to be nominated by the Isle of
Wight Association of Local Councils (IWALC). (By section 13 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 it could not, by law, be a voting co-opted
member).

13.

IWALC have nominated Cllr Shirley Smart to be appointed to the Planning
Committee. Council is therefore formally requested to make that appointment.

14.

Turning now to the Health and Wellbeing Board (which for clarity is not a body
required to be politically proportionate), IWALC have nominated Cllr Kai Wacker to
be appointed to the Health and Wellbeing Board and has nominated Cllr Shirley
Smart to be appointed to the Health and Wellbeing Board as the authorised
substitute. Council is therefore formally requested to make these appointments.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT
15.

Good governance arrangements are essential to the delivery of the council’s services
and the decision-making process that support this.

CONSULTATION
16.

None as seat allocation has not yet been agreed.

FINANCIAL / BUDGET IMPLICATIONS
17.

There are no additional costs associated with the proposals contained in this report.
The recommendations accord with the resources available within the overall budget
agreed by Full Council in February 2021.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
18.

Under section 16 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 the power to
appoint elected councillors to committees is that of the local authority i.e. the council.
(The power to appoint sub-committees rests with the parent committee).

19.

This power to appoint councillors to committees (and indeed the power to remove
councillors from committees) cannot be delegated by the Full Council to a committee
or to any officer of the council or indeed to any political group, but must be exercised
by the Full Council itself. This is because the power to make delegated arrangements
under section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 is subject to any express
provision contained in that Act or in any subsequent enactment, and section 102 of
the Local Government Act 1972 and section 16 of the Local Government and Housing
Act 1989 are such express provisions.

20.

It is the duty of the council itself to exercise the power of appointment of elected
members to its committees ‘as soon as practicable’. The obligation on the Full Council
is to give effect at the first practicable opportunity. Appointments are required to be
made.

21.

As it is only the council that can make appointments to its committees (and only the
council has the power to remove) the council must, if it wishes to have any
Page 29

substitutes, appoint substitutes to its committees as political groups have no power
to appoint, merely to nominate. The appointment of named substitutes (where such
substitution is permitted by law and under the Constitution) has the merit of
transparency and openness, and, as the council has already agreed that political
groups should only nominate members as substitutes if they have had relevant
training in the work of the committee, this approach enables training and resources
to be better focussed and better discharges its fiduciary duty to ratepayers.
22.

Under regulation 14 of the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups)
Regulations 1990 as amended, the appointed proper officer (the Monitoring Officer)
has the duty to notify the relevant leaders of the political groups ‘as soon as
practicable’ after the agreed allocation of seats (or after any vacancies subsequently
arising) so that such political groups may nominate members from their groups for
appointment by the council to the seats allocated on its committees to their groups.

23.

Should a political group fail to express its wishes in relation to such appointment
within three weeks beginning with the date on which the proper officer gave due
written notice, the council has discretion to make such appointment to that seat as
they think fit in accordance with regulation 15 of the same regulations. The seats
could be left vacant for a period of time.

24.

This legal inability to implement the nominations of political groups by way of
delegated authority is clearly administratively inconvenient as delays in appointment
inevitably result, but any purported delegation would be, and is, unlawful and
ineffective.

25.

The Health and Wellbeing Board has been established under section 194(1) of the
Health and Social Care Act 2012. Under the Constitution the Board’s membership
includes a representative from IWALC, being what the local authority thinks
appropriate under section 194(2)(g) of that Act.

26.

It is for the council to appoint the nominated representative from IWALC as under
section 194(11) of that Act a Health and Wellbeing Board is a committee of the local
authority which established it and is treated as a committee appointed under section
102 of the Local Government Act 1972, but it is not required to be politically
proportionate by virtue of regulation 7 of the Local Authority (Public Health and
Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
27.

The council as a public body is required to meet its statutory obligations under the
Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to eliminate unlawful discrimination, promote
equal opportunities between people from different groups and to foster good relations
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share
it. The protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage
and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation. It is not considered that the content of this report has any negative impact
on any of the protected characteristics.
Page 30

OPTIONS
28.

To approve the review of political proportionality.

29.

To appoint those nominated by Alliance Group to their vacant allocated seats (in the
absence of any alternative arrangements being agreed without dissent).

30.

To appoint Cllr Geoff Brodie to the two new unallocated seats, namely to the Appeals
Committee and to the Planning Committee, or such other ungrouped councillor as
might be nominated.

31.

To appoint Cllr Shirley Smart to serve as a non-voting co-opted member of the
Planning Committee.

32.

To appoint Cllr Kai Wacker to serve as the IWALC representative on the Health and
Wellbeing Board and to appoint Cllr Shirley Smart to serve as the authorised
substitute for Cllr Kai Wacker as the IWALC representative

33.

To agree alternative arrangements and to make appointments in accordance with
those alternative arrangements.

RISK MANAGEMENT
34.

The recommendations are to ensure that the council meets its corporate governance
requirements and responds to changing requirements and demands. These should
lessen the risks arising from any challenge to the decision-making process by way of
judicial review or other such legal action.

EVALUATION
35.

Council has no option and must respect the duly expressed wishes of the respective
political group and to appoint those nominated to their allocated seats (unless no
such wishes were expressed within the prescribed statutory deadline in which case
the council has discretion to appoint – this is not yet applicable as time only begins
to run after the decision to allocate seats has been made and after the Monitoring
Officer has given due written notice).

36.

Equally Council has no option and must appoint any unallocated seats to ungrouped
members, but it does have discretion as to which ungrouped member(s) to appoint.
Fairness requires ungrouped members to be able to nominate their substitutes too
from among any other ungrouped member(s).

37.

An effective governance system for the council is essential to enable business to be
transacted openly and in a timely manner. The appointment of elected members
(including where appropriate substitutes) to its committees seeks to do this.

Page 31

RECOMMENDATIONS
38.

To approve the review of political proportionality.

39.

To appoint those nominated by Alliance Group to their vacant allocated seats (in
the absence of any alternative arrangements being agreed without dissent).

40.

To appoint Cllr Geoff Brodie to the two new unallocated seats, namely to the
Appeals Committee and to the Planning Committee, or such other ungrouped
councillor as might be nominated.

41.

To appoint Cllr Shirley Smart to serve as a non-voting co-opted member of the
Planning Committee.

42.

To appoint Cllr Kai Wacker to serve as the IWALC representative on the Health
and Wellbeing Board and to appoint Cllr Shirley Smart to serve as the authorised
substitute for Cllr Kai Wacker as the IWALC representative.

APPENDICES ATTACHED
43.

Appendix 1 – Political proportionality review, and reallocated seat allocation.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
44.

None.

Contact Point: Christopher Potter, Monitoring Officer,  821000 e-mail
christopher.potter@iow.gov.uk
CLAIRE SHAND
Director of Corporate Services

CLLR LORA PEACEY-WILCOX
Leader of the Cabinet/Council

Page 32

APPENDIX 1 – POLITICAL BALANCE REVIEW AND SEAT ALLOCATION (ELECTED COUNTY COUNCILLORS)

Page 33

Committee

Alliance Conservatives Ungrouped Total

Variance

Appeals Committee

4

5

1

10

Minus 1
Alliance to
Plus 1
ungrouped

Appointments and Employment Committee
Audit Committee
Investigating and Disciplinary Committee
Harbour Committee
Licensing Committee
Planning Committee

3
3
2
3
5
5

3
3
2
3
5
6

0
1
1
1
1
1

6
7
5
7
11
12

Pension Fund Committee
Corporate Scrutiny Committee
Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Children’s Services,
Education and Skills
Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Health and Social Care
Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Neighbourhoods and
Regeneration
Total:

3
4
3

3
4
3

1
1
1

7
9
7

3
3

3
3

1
1

7
7

41

43

11

Minus 1
Alliance
Plus 1
ungrouped

95

Appendix 1

NB. Changes: The Alliance Group has two fewer seats overall, based on 95 seats (41.41%). The ungrouped has two additional seats. Political Proportionality
is calculated on the relevant statutory principles in section 15(5) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (principles a, c and d in that order). Principle
b still does not apply as there is one political group which is a majority of the local authority’s membership. Principle a is that not all the seats on the body are
allocated to the same political group. Principle c is that (subject to principle a) the number of the ordinary committee seats which are allocated to each political
group bears the same proportion to the total number of ordinary committees seats as is borne by the number of members of that group to the membership of
the authority. Principle d is that (subject to a and c) the number of seats on the body which are allocated to each political group bears the same proportion to
the number of all the seats on that body as is borne by the number of members of that group to the membership of the authority. The ungrouped are entitled
to their proportion under section 16(2A) of the 1989 Act.

This page is intentionally left blank

